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                -vs-
The Peoples Gas Light and Coke 
Company
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07-0358

ORDER

By the Commission:

In a Staff Report dated May 25, 2007, the Pipeline Safety Program of the Illinois 
Commerce Commission's ("Commission") reported on a matter involving The Peoples 
Gas Light and Coke Company ("Peoples" or "the Company"). The Staff Report 
recounted that, on June 2, 2005, the Commission entered an Order commencing a 
proceeding, (Docket 05-0341), to determine whether Peoples Gas had failed to comply 
the inspection requirements of 49 CFR §192.723(b)(2) in that Peoples Gas had failed to 
conduct leakage surveys with leak detector equipment within the five year time span 
mandated by the federal rule incorporated in the Commission’s rule, 83 Ill. Adm. Code 
590.10,and to determine whether civil penalties should be imposed pursuant to Section 
7 of the Illinois Gas Pipeline Safety Act [220 ILCS 20/7]. The Commission concluded 
that Peoples was not in compliance with the requirements to perform Inside Safety 
Inspections ("ISIs") under 49 CFR §192.723(b)(2). In the Final Order in Docket 05-0341 
(Final Order) entered on March 22, 2006, the Commission ordered that Peoples Gas 
should proceed promptly to complete currently overdue inside leakage surveys as 
required by 83 Ill. Adm. Code 590.10. The Commission found a penalty of $500,000 to 
be appropriate.

The Staff Report details the difficulty reported by Peoples in complying with the 
Final Order. Peoples claimed difficulty in obtaining access to several thousand struc-
tures and, as a result, there was concern that Peoples would not complete ISIs required 
to achieve compliance with 49 CFR § 192.723(b)(2). In January 2007, Pipeline Safety 
Staff submitted a data request to Peoples concerning ISIs due and completed in 
calendar year 2006. The responses to the six items comprising the data request, 
summarized in the Staff Report, indicate that Peoples has had little success in comply-
ing with the requirements of the rules.



The Staff makes a recommendation that the Commission require the Company 
to provide funding for, develop, and administer an enhanced public awareness 
campaign specifically targeted at increasing the customer knowledge and understand-
ing of the necessity to permit Peoples to perform its obligatory Inside Safety 
Inspections. As authority for this position, Staff relies on Section 8-505 of the Public 
Utilities Act [220 ILCS 5/8-505], which states:

The Commission shall have power, after a hearing or without a hearing as 
provided in this Section and upon its own motion, or upon complaint, by 
general or special orders, rules or regulations, or otherwise, to require 
every public utility to maintain and operate its plant, equipment or other 
property in such manner as to promote and safeguard the health and 
safety of its employees, customers, and the public, and to this end to pre-
scribe, among other things, the installation, use, maintenance and 
operation of appropriate safety or other devices or appliances, to establish 
uniform or other standards of equipment, and to require the perfor-
mance of any other act which the health or safety of its employees, 
customers or the public may demand. [Emphasis added]

Based on the Company's own statements to Staff, it is experiencing difficulty in gaining 
the entry necessary to perform the inside inspections. The program envisioned in the 
Staff Report would explain

the regulatory requirements, the potential hazards that may go undisco-
vered if access is not granted; the inspection process; time requirements, 
a means to positively identify Peoples Gas employees assigned to per-
form inspections; potential consequences of failure to respond to the 
request; and a means to obtain additional information relating to the in-
spections from Peoples Gas and the City of Chicago. (Staff Report, p.4)

Staff recommends that the funding be in the amount of $500,000 above and beyond 
that budgeted for the existing Public Awareness Program in use by Peoples.

The Staff Report presents a sufficient basis to initiate a proceeding to determine 
whether the Company should provide funding for, develop, and administer an enhanced 
public awareness campaign specifically targeted at increasing the customer knowledge 
and understanding of the necessity to permit Peoples to perform its obligatory Inside 
Safety Inspections and, if it is determined that such a public awareness should be 
initiated, ascertain the appropriate amount of funding for such program.

The Commission, being fully advised in the premises, is of the opinion and finds 
that:

(1) The Peoples Gas Light and Coke Company is a public utility engaged in 
the conveyance of gas by pipe line and, as such, is subject to the Illinois 



Gas Pipeline Safety Act in that it is a person who engages in the transpor-
tation of gas or who owns or operates pipeline facilities;

(2) the Commission has jurisdiction over the subject matter herein and The 
Peoples Gas Light and Coke Company;

(3) The Peoples Gas Light and Coke Company should be made a respondent 
to this proceeding;

(4) the Staff Report from the Pipeline Safety Program provides a basis for the 
initiation of a proceeding to determine whether The Peoples Gas Light 
and Coke Company should provide funding for, develop, and administer 
an enhanced public awareness campaign specifically targeted at increas-
ing the customer knowledge and understanding of the necessity to permit 
Peoples to perform its obligatory Inside Safety Inspections and, if it is de-
termined that such a public awareness should be initiated, ascertain the 
appropriate amount of funding for such program;

(5) Section 8-505 of the Public Utilities Act provides authority for the Com-
mission to make the determinations listed in finding (4);

(6) the Staff Report dated May 25, 2007 should be made a part of the record 
of this proceeding;

IT IS THEREFORE ORDERED by the Illinois Commerce Commission that a 
proceeding be initiated to determine whether The Peoples Gas Light and Coke 
Company should provide funding for, develop, and administer an enhanced public 
awareness campaign specifically targeted at increasing the customer knowledge and 
understanding of the necessity to permit Peoples to perform its obligatory Inside Safety 
Inspections and, if it is determined that such a public awareness should be initiated, 
ascertain the appropriate amount of funding for such program.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Peoples Gas Light and Coke Company is 
made respondent to this proceeding.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that the Staff Report dated May 25, 2007 is made a 
part of the record of this proceeding.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that respondent appear at the offices of the 
Commission at the time and date specified by the Administrative Law Judge assigned 
to this proceeding.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that failure of the respondent to appear as ordered 
may result in findings that The Peoples Gas Light and Coke Company shall provide 
funding for, develop, and administer an enhanced public awareness campaign specifi-
cally targeted at increasing the customer knowledge and understanding of the necessity 



to permit Peoples to perform its obligatory Inside Safety Inspections and setting the 
appropriate amount of funding for such program.

IT IS FURTHER ORDERED that this Order is not final; it is not subject to the 
Administrative Review Law.

By Order of the Commission this 6th day of June, 2007.

(SIGNED) CHARLES E. BOX

Chairman


